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Addendum 4: 20-B-011, Mourning Dove WTP- Solids Train Upgrade 

 

April 23, 2020 

Addendum 4: ITB 20-B-011 
Mourning Dove WTP – Solids Train Upgrade 

 

To All Prospective Bidders:  

This Addendum becomes hereby an integral part of the ITB package under consideration by you as a respondent. The 

City of Titusville deems all sealed bids to have been proffered in recognition of the entire ITB package including all 

issued addenda.  

 

Should you have any question pertaining to this Addendum, please contact April Chapman, Purchasing & Contracts 

Administrator at 321-567-3973.  

 

ADDENDUM MESSAGE  

As a point of clarification, it should be understood that the Contract Documents govern all aspects of the project.  

Discussions held during the Pre-Bid Conference or over phone or email are informal and informational only.  All 

official changes to the Contract Documents are made only by addenda.  Addendum No. 1, which clarified the 

appropriate link to this Bid’s Technical Specifications and Plans & Drawings, was issued on March 5, 2020. 

Addendum No. 2, which provided responses to questions submitted prior to March 27, was issued on March 27, 2020. 

Addendum No. 3, which changed the bid opening date to May 5, 2020 @ 3:30pm and the date all final questions shall 

be received by to April 27, 2020, was issued on April 13, 2020. Please see these Addenda for additional details. 

 

The following changes and additional information are hereby made a part of the Contract Documents in this Addendum 

4: 

 

GENERAL 

None. 

 

SPECIFICATIONS 

Specification 11353, Gravity Thickener Mechanism, Table 2.2 calls for: 

- Minimum Main Gear Pitch Diameter of 60-inch 

- Minimum Main Bearing Diameter of 66-inch 

MODIFY the aforementioned rows in Table 2.2 to reflect the following: 

- Minimum Main Gear Pitch Diameter of 50-inch 

- Minimum Main Bearing Diameter of 47-inch 

 

 

DRAWINGS 

A non-scanned copy of the Drawings that includes modifications per Addendum 2 and Addendum 4 can be 

downloaded at the link below: 

https://titusville.sharefile.com/d-sa9af0b800444f64b  

 

https://titusville.sharefile.com/d-sa9af0b800444f64b
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

Questions received from potential bidders are listed below:                             

 

Q1: Alternate A – Can the quantity of sludge removal be treated as an allowance item?  It appears per note 1 on C-8  

 that the quantities observed on the survey provided are likely to change? 

A1: City will not do an alternate allowance for the sludge. The schedule of values is to remain the same 

 

Q2: Reference Section 11214-1.5-E: Please confirm the H.I. Standard and API Standard 610 is acceptable for the  

 lateral & torsional analysis, the % listed in the specification are quite a ways outside of the standard.  Below is the  

 standard we request confirm on: 

- For lateral rotor analysis, per H.I., separation margin is +/- 15%.  For torsional rotor, per API Stnd  

 610, separation margin is +/- 10% 

A2:  Confirmed, the Hydraulic Institute (HI) Standard and American Petroleum Institute (API) Standard 610 are 

acceptable. 

 

Q3: Reference Section 11000-2.4: Specifications call out flexible couplings.  Please confirm of rigid couplings are  

 acceptable since this is the version designed with the Engineer for the project. 

A3: Rigid or flexible couplings are acceptable. 

 

Q4: Reference Section 11214-1.9-A: Warranties based on substantial completion are not available from equipment  

 suppliers.  Please confirm the number of months from delivery or startup that manufacturer’s must warrant the  

 products through. 

A4: Contractor is required to warrant the equipment for a minimum of one-year from substantial completion. The 

manufacturer is required to warrant the equipment for a minimum of 6 months from date of acceptance by the 

Owner, regardless of Substantial Completion. 

 

Q5: Reference Section 11214-2.2-D: Please confirm that Vibration limitations are approved per the most recent H.I.  

 standards. 

A5: Confirmed, the vibration limitations per the most recent HI standards shall be approved. 

 

Q6: Reference Section 11310-1.3-C: Per section 11214, please confirm that factory test shall be a non-witness bowl  

 performance tests with lab motor. 

A6: Confirmed, the factory test shall be a non-witness bowl performance tests with a laboratory motor. 

 

Q7: What are the dimensions, detail thickness and reinforcing information for the pump building on page C-10? 

A7: There is no Pump Building shown on C-10. For Detail A, the Sludge Transfer Pumps, the equipment pad 

information is shown on the Structural Details. For Detail C, the Recovery and Recycle Pumps, the structural 

information is shown clearly on the Structural Drawings. 

 

Q8: What are the dimensions, detail thickness and reinforcing information for the Dewatering building 2nd floor slab? 

A8: The information is shown on the Structural Drawings.  

 

Q9: The masonry wall is 10'' wide, is there a change in the block to 8'' or 12''?  10'' block isn't available. It would have  

 to be a special made and set up fees will be produced. 

A9: 10-inch CMU block is available from multiple vendors. However, if it is considered custom by one vendor and 

requires additional transportation costs, then 12-inch CMU block can be used instead of 10-inch CMU block.  

 

Q10: Can you provide vector files of the bid drawings? The current bid drawings are scanned and are difficult to read. 

It is hard to differentiate between new and existing lines on some of the civil sheets. When they were scanned in, it 

caused the light lines and dark lines to have a similar shading. Additionally, as a result of scanning, there is a 

discrepancy in the scale on the drawings. As such, scaling the drawings is difficult. To better assist us in bidding 

this project, we require the vector files, unscanned drawings, that are more legible and to scale. 

A10: Please find a non-scanned Drawing set at the link provided in the DRAWINGS section above. 
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Q11: Reference Drawing E-4: Note 4 requires to install a 350a CB in existing main switchgear. Please furnish the make  

 and model # of the main switchgear. 

A11: Please see Attachment 1 which provides photos of the existing electrical panels. It was unclear if the question 

was geared toward the main switchgear or the panel in the Annex. Pictures of both have been provided.  

 

Q12: In specs page 13440-8 it references that an acceptable system integrator is Extreme Control Systems. In attempts  

 in contacting the listed by phone number was invalid and not able to contacted. Who would the City prefer to  

 perform this scope of work? 

A12: The City does not have a preferred system integrator, as stated in 13440-1.1.A.3, the City will perform the 

 SCADA integration. The Contractor may use a qualified integrator that can be submitted during the Shop 

Drawing Review process. The systems integrator the Contractor proposes will need to meet the qualifications 

as prescribed in the Specifications. 

 

Q13: Are there any requirements for disinfection or bacteria tests to be done by the owner or contractor before new  

 tanks or pipe may be put into service? 

A13: Please see Section 01715, Section 02665-3.12, Section 02675 and Section 15050-3.3. 

 

Q14: PR-1 general note 4 says to concrete encase under slab pipe. Please confirm this applies to the 6” SL on PR-9 and  

 clarify if the 6” pipe on PR-11 gets encased.  

A14: The 6” SL as shown on PR-9 will need to be concrete encased. The pipes leaving the Recovery and Recycle  

 Pumps under the equipment pad will NOT need to be concrete encased.  

 

Q15: C-10 Detail A shows a 6” TS-DIP to the north. Please confirm this is 4” and clarify if it gets encased at the  

 Dewatering building. 

A15: Confirmed. The Northwest most line leaving the thickened sludge pumps and heading to the dewatering 

building is incorrectly labeled as a 6” TS-DIP and should be a 4” line. The size of this line is correctly shown 

on PR-8. Also, this pipe shall be encased at the Dewatering Building. 

  

Q16: C-9 shows an 8” overflow in the recovery pond. Please clarify the elevation of the overflow. It will be helpful to  

 figure the high water elevation when using only a portion of the tank. 

A16:  Per the hydraulic profile on PR-5 the high water level in the recovery pond shall be el 34.5. The overflow pipe  

 shall be placed accordingly.  

 

Q17: On Drawings S-8 and S-9 we see that there are pressure release valves in the new recovery pond. They are not  

 however mentioned in the new sludge thickener tank on PR-9 in the plans. Can you clarify if there need to be  

 pressure release valves in both? 

A17:  There will be pressure relief valves in the Recovery Pond as shown on the Structural drawings.  There will be  

 no similar pressure relief valves for the new sludge thickener.  

 

Q18: Reference: Drawing C-9. The pipelines are not shown clearly, tie-ins are not clear. We need vertical details for  

 each pipeline. 

A18:  Please find a non-scanned Drawing set at the link provided in the DRAWINGS section above. Manhole invert 

elevations can be found on the Site Piping Plan Drawing C-9 as well as on the Hydraulic Profile Drawing 

PR-5. Manhole connection details can be found in the civil details, specifically Drawing C-15. Note, per 

drawing C-1 under Civil Site Piping note 2, pipes shall have a constant slope from end-to-end. 

 

Q19: Regarding the 8-inch plant drain lines, can you provide a buried cut drawing and include depth info, manhole  

 inverts, manhole diameters, etc? 

A19:  Manhole invert elevations can be found on the Site Piping Plan Drawing C-9 as well as on the Hydraulic  

 Profile Drawing PR-5. Manhole connection detail is on Drawing C-15. Note, per drawing C-1 under Civil Site  

 Piping note 2, pipes shall have a constant slope from end-to-end. 

 

Q20: Reference: Drawing C-10, site piping plan details A, B, C & D. Again, we need tie-in details, vertical  
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 elevations and I believe some lines are missing from Drawing C-9 and the Process Drawings.  

A20:  See response to Question 18 and Question 19 above.  

- For additional details on Detail A from Drawing C-10 see Drawing PR-8. 

- Regarding Details B and D on Drawing C-10, the pressure pipe elevations shall be buried to a depth of 

at a minimum of 3-feet and connect to the existing pipes. Awarded Contractor to field verify depth of 

existing pipelines before installation. 

- Regarding Detail C on Drawing C-10, Manhole invert elevations can be found on the Site Piping Plan 

Drawing C-9 as well as on the Hydraulic Profile Drawing PR-5. This includes the doghouse manhole 

shown in the detail. 

 

Q21: Reference Drawing PR-6: The 6-inch DEC buried line and where it goes is not shown on Drawing C-9 and C-10.  

 There is no vertical detail which is needed. How deep is it buried?  

A21:  The 6-inch DEC line is the process decant line from the dewatering filters (see Drawing PR-6 and PR-7).  

This line becomes the 8-inch PD (process drain) line on Drawing C-9 and connects to manhole PMH-1. This 

8-inch PD line on Drawing C-9 is being modified to be a 6-inch line. This modification is shown on the 

drawing set provide in the DRAWINGS section above. In addition, a new detail of connection and depth of 

where the 6-inch DEC line connects with the now 6-inch PD line is now provided on Drawing PR-12. 

 

Q22: The (4) EA – 4-inch floor drain lines on each corner of the dewatering building seem to just dump on the ground.  

 Is that correct or is there buried drain lines required that are not shown? 

 A22:  The drains terminate above the final grade for ground discharge to the surface drainage which will divert the 

water per the existing site ERP. These drain lines can be seen on Drawing PR-7. 

 

Q23: The 8-inch plant drain line PMH-1 to the Dewatering Building shown on Drawing C-9 is not shown on  

 Drawing PR-6 or PR-7. Where does it go, how deep is it buried, how does it end at the dewatering  

 building?  

 A23:  See response to Question 21 above. 

 

Q24: Reference Drawing PR-8: The 6-inch pump suction lines (2) are not shown clearly on Drawing C-9 and  

 C-10. How deep are they? Need elevations for the riser pipes.  

A24:  As shown on Drawing PR-9 the 6-inch SL (sludge) line exiting the new thickener has a centerline elevation of  

 24.17’. This line runs to the sludge transfer pumps that are shown on Drawing PR-8. Drawing C-9 and Detail  

A on Drawing C-10 also shows these 6-inch TS (thickened sludge) lines. As noted on Drawing C-9 Contractor 

shall connect the existing 6-inch TS line from the existing thickener to the new sludge pumps.  

 

The Awarded Contractor is to verify the existing piping elevations for connections. Existing reference 

drawings indicate that the existing 6-inch TS line from the existing sludge thickener is approximately 3-feet 

below ground level. Where this line rises to 3-feet below ground level after leaving the existing thickener is 

unknown. For the new 6-inch TS line the Contractor may have the TS line rise up to 3-feet below grade after 

the pipe is at a minimum 3-feet from the new thickener’s edge including possibly running the full distance to 

the sludge pumps’ slab (approximately 6-feet) and then elbow up 90-degrees and connect directly to the above 

ground 90-degree elbow at elevation 38.66’ (see Drawing PR-8 – Section 1).   

 

Q25: Where does the 4-inch sludge transfer pump discharge tie-in at the dewatering building? What is the  

  elevation for the riser pipes? 

A25:  Drawing C-9 shows the 4-inch thickened sludge (TS) line run from the sludge pumps to the southeast corner  

 of the Dewatering Building. The line then runs up through the Dewatering Building’s 1st floor slab to the  

 filters on the second floor. The routing of the 4-inch TS line inside the Dewatering Building is shown on  

 Drawings PR-6 and PR-7. In Section 1 of Drawing PR-7 the 4-inch TS line is shown coming through the  

 first-floor slab. An additional callout was added to Section 2 of Drawing PR-7 to better highlight the location  

 of the 4-inch TS line (see revised drawing set provided DRAWINGS section above). Further routing of this 4- 

 inch TS line is shown in Drawing PR-6. Drawing PR-6 shows the 4-inch TS line wrap around the building at  

elevation 49.00’ on the East side of the building, elevation 50.25 on the North side of the building and 

elevation 49.00’ on the West side of the building. 
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Q26: What is the elevation for the 2-inch PW and at the 4-inch x 2-inch Tee shown on Drawing C-10 in  

 Detail A? Is there an above ground valve detail shown for the 4-inch x 2-inch assembly and concrete  

 pad shown on Detail A also? Is this a 4-inch backflow assembly? 

A26:  The Awarded Contractor is to verify the elevation of the existing 4-inch PW pipeline for connection as shown  

on Drawing C-9. Existing reference drawings indicate that the existing 4-inch potable water line is in the 

approximate location as shown on Drawing C-9 (the existing line feeds the existing sludge transfer pumps 

and fed the existing dewatering building). The new pressure pipes shall be buried a minimum of 3-feet deep. 

The details for the booster pump assembly and Sludge Transfer Pumps are shown on Drawing PR-8.  

 

Q27: Reference Drawing PR-9: Where does the 8-inch INF line show up on Drawing C-9 and C-10? What is  

 the elevation for the riser pipe? 

A27:  The existing 8-inch clarifier blowdown water line (BW) is shown on Drawing C-9. This existing line currently  

runs to the existing sludge thickener. As shown on Drawing C-9 and in Drawing C-10 Detail B, this existing 

line is tapped in three locations. The first location allows for water from the Recovery pond to be pumped 

back to the existing thickener (see Drawing C-10 Detail B where valve PV-611 connects to the existing line). 

The second allows for a valve to direct water to the new thickener and isolate the existing thickener (see 

Drawing C-10 Detail B PV-601). The third allows blowdown water to travel to the new thickener (see 

Drawing C-10 Detail B PV-602). The line that PV-602 is connected to runs to the new thickener. On Drawing 

C-9 this line is labeled 8-inch REC and on Drawing PR-9 this line is labeled as 8-inch INF. Existing 

reference drawings indicate that the existing 8-inch BW line is approximately 3-feet below ground level, 

Contractor to verify. The riser pipe elevations of the 8-inch INF pipe that feeds the new thickener are shown 

on Drawing PR-9.  

 

Q28: Where does the 8-inch overflow line go? It’s not shown on Drawing C-9 and C-10. What is the  

 elevation for the riser pipe? 

A28:  The 8-inch overflow line is shown on Drawing C-9 as the 8-inch PD line that first runs to PMH-2 and then to  

PMH-3 before continuing to the Recovery Pond. Elevations for the pipes entering and exiting PMH-2 and 

PMH-3 are shown on Drawing C-9. The elevation of the overflow pipe exiting the new thickener is shown on 

Drawing PR-9.  

 

Q29: Is the 6-inch SL line shown on Drawing PR-9 new? If so, where does it go and tie-in to what? Also  

 need tie-in elevations. This line is not shown on Drawing C-9 and C-10.  

A29:  Yes, the 6-inch SL line shown on Drawing PR-9 is new. This line runs to the new sludge transfer pumps and  

 is called out in Drawing PR-8 as the 6-inch TS line. This line is called out as the 6-inch TS line in Drawings  

 C-9 and C-10. For additional information regarding elevations see response to Question 24 above. 

 

Q30: Reference Drawing PR-11: Can you provide an elevation detail drawing for the 6-inch riser.  

A30:  Elevations are provided on Drawing PR-11, Section 2.  

 

Q31: Reference Addendum No. 2, Question No. 6 (Pipe Supports): Why does the Contractor need to have a  

 professional engineer in the state of Florida need to be hired to design a simple/standard pipe support that is  

 already overbuild. A professional engineer designed the job already.  

A31:  The pipe supports shown are for illustrative purposes only and type. The Contractor shall follow specification 

15094 for pipe support requirements. 

 

Q32: Reference Addendum No. 2, Question No. 33 (PV-701): Please clarify the response. The electric actuator  

schedule on Specification page 15120-5 does not show a BV-701. On Drawing PR-6, both VDF-701 and VDF-

702 show 4-inch plug valves PV-701 and PV-702. Where is the BV-701 shown and is there a BV-701 also 

required?  

A32:  BV-701 is shown in three locations: Drawing PR-6, 1st Floor Plan View; Drawing PR-7, Section 2; and  

 Drawing PR-12 “Flushing Connection” detail. The electric actuator requirements for BV-701 shall be added  

 per Addendum No. 2., Question No. 33. 
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Q33: Reference Addendum No.2 Question No. 32: Please verify again that all DI pipe and fitting on this job is to be  

 cement lined.  

A33: Ductile Iron Pipe and Fittings supplied on this project shall follow the Bid Documents and pertinent  

 specifications and drawing requirements. 

 

Q34: Can Ebara Model Number EVMSU10-4 be added as an approved equal for the Plant Water Booster Pump in  

 Specifications Section 11211? 

A34:  The City is not evaluating “or equal” submissions during the bidding process. These can be evaluated during 

the Shop Drawing Review process after the Contract is awarded. 

 

Q35: Can Trillium Model Number 8JKM be added as an approved equal for the Vertical Turbine Pump in  

 Specification Section 11214. 

 A35:  The City is not evaluating “or equal” submissions during the bidding process. These can be evaluated during  

 the Shop Drawing Review process after the Contract is awarded. 

 

Q36: Specification Section 08900 calls for a thermally broken grid core for the Insulated Translucent Panels.  

 Thermally broken grids are not typically used in Florida because the outside temperature is much warmer than the  

inside temperature and when the opposing temperatures come together at the fiberglass thermally broken grid, 

they do not mesh well and tend to cause condensation within the panel.  This condensation, in turn, destroys the 

fiberglass insulation inside the panel. 

 

The standard aluminum grid allows the hot and cold air to meld together and minimize radical temperature 

change in the panel and condensation.  Thermally broken panels are only for cold environments to help reduce 

condensation forming on the interior side of the interior face sheet.  The Condensation Resistance Factor test 

(AAMA 1503) that thermally broken panels rely on, is performed with a 0° temperature on the outside and 70° 

temperature on the inside.  These temperatures are not typical of the Florida environment.   Is it acceptable to use 

a standard 2 ¾” aluminum grid core in lieu of the 2 ¾” thermally broken grid?   

 

The 2 ¾” aluminum grid core has a .29 “U” Factor, a Visible Light Transmission of 16% and a Solar Heat Gain 

Coefficient of 0.25. 

A36:  Standard 2 3/4” aluminum grid core is acceptable. 

 

Q37: The Large Missile tested panel unit glazing is 1” IGU.  Is this acceptable in lieu of the specified 5/8” IGU? 

A37:  1” IGU is acceptable. 

 

Q38: Per section 13440-1.3-E-2., acceptable system integrators having a minimum of 5-years’ experience in supplying  

 comparable systems will be accepted. C.C. Control would like to be assed to the pre-approved list of acceptable  

 system integrators. Upon request, C.C. Control will provide a Company Statement of Qualifications. 

A38:  The City is not evaluating the proposed system integrators during the bidding process. These can be evaluated  

 during the Shop Drawing Review process or at a time after the Contract is awarded. 

 

Q39: Much like the electrical section, would it be possible to have a lump sum entry for the instrumentation & control  

 portion of this project? 

A39:  The City is not adjusting the Bid Form to accommodate this request. 

 

Q40: Reference Drawing I-5 and I-6: Both drawings illustrate BW-CP and SP-CP motor controls.  The harmonic filter  

 and motor protection relay is applied to each motor in BW-CP but it is not indicated in SP-CP.  Please advise. 

A40: The pumps at the BW-CP (Recovery and Recycle Pumps) have a motor protection relay, but the sludge  

 transfer pumps do not. 

 

Q41: Per Specification 15120, Section 3.4 “Electric Actuator Schedule”, Plug Valves 601, 602, 611, and 612 are to  

 have electric actuators. However, I-5 nor any of the electrical drawings depict these valves as EMO’s. If they are,  

 please revise the I and E drawings to include conduit sizes, quantities, wiring requirements, power sources, etc. 

A41:  Plug Valves 601, 602, 611, and 612 shall be manually operated open/close valves. Electric Motor Operators  
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 are not required. 

 

Q42: Drawing A-1 two-story building states: There is no information concerning floor thickness, rebar, or spacing in  

 plans regarding suspension and concrete type.  Please advise. 

A42:  Floor thickness, reinforcing requirements, and concrete information are all included on the structural  

 drawings, and as outlined in the specifications.  

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 4 

 

 

   
The ITB opening due date remains May 5, 2020 at 3:30 p.m. All other terms and conditions of the ITB remain the 

same. 
 

April Chapman 
Purchasing & Contracts Administrator 

City of Titusville 
 

Cc: A. Smith, Water Resources Supervisor Engineer 

 G. Taylor, Wright-Pierce EOR 

Bid File 
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